


03 Thinking about buying?
If you are thinking about buying,
this section discusses the rent
versus buy decision,
understanding what you can
afford, the costs of buying a
home and setting your savings
target.

05 Starting the search 
Helpful tips to evaluate your
needs, find the home, things to
look for at viewings and contacts
for further information along the
way.

09 Buying the home
An overview of the surveys you
will need, the buying process and
conveyancing.

13 The mortgage
We look at how you can analyse
your own mortgage needs before
investigating the various products
available.

16 Getting help
A list of useful contacts to help
you make the best home buying
decision.

02/03

Inside this Guide

To be happy at home is the
ultimate result of all ambition.
Samuel Johnson ”“



Thinking about buying?
Buying a home is an exciting moment
and a big decision. Reading this Guide
may help you along the way.

Rent v buy 
You know how people say that rent is
dead money? Well, the reverse may also
be true. Some financial experts say
renting may not be the evil many of us
think it is. If you rent and invest wisely,
you may accumulate wealth faster than
by going heavily into debt. That’s
because money used in paying interest
over the long term on a large debt may
often be greater than rent payments.

When weighing up the rent or buy
argument, consider the total cost of
borrowing and the likely return on any
investment. At present, the cost of
borrowing is not so severe, and current
interest rates make repayments more
affordable, while making it difficult to
achieve handsome returns on cash
investments.

Knowing what you can afford
Knowing what you can afford is a matter
of being realistic about your financial
circumstances and also considering
things that may change in the future. For
example, if you’re thinking about starting
a family, there’ll be added expenses and
you may move from two incomes to one. 

While the lender will examine your
capacity to pay, you can best judge your
own circumstances and standard of
living. As a general rule, if you’re a single
applicant, lenders will let you borrow
three to three and a half times your
annual income. On a joint application,
you can usually borrow three times the
annual income of the higher salary plus
one times the income of the lesser
salary, or two and a half times your 
joint income.



How much do you need? 
Once you’ve determined your
borrowing capacity, you need to
work out how much it is going to
cost you to get into your new home.

The deposit 
A deposit of 5% should be
considered the bare minimum for a
first time buyer. Obviously, the more
you put down, the better. 

Tax 
Stamp duty land tax applies to
properties above the tax free
threshold and is calculated on a
sliding scale according to the
home’s purchase price. The Stamp
Office Helpline – 0845 6030 135 –
may be of assistance as you are
comparing homes and the tax
implications.

Other costs
Unfortunately, your savings target
doesn’t stop with the deposit and
stamp duty land tax. There are many
other costs associated with buying

and maintaining a home, including
the following.
• Home insurance – you can get

an initial estimate from the bank
online.

• Mortgage payments – knowing
what you are likely to pay will
assist with your planning. Again
the bank has online calculators
which can assist you.

• Mortgage protection insurance
– can assist you if you fall ill or
lose your job.

• Mortgage Indemnity Guarantee
– this is required by most
lenders if you’re borrowing more
than 90% of the value of the
home.

• Utilities – council tax, gas, water,
electricity.

• Conveyancing – this is the legal
process of buying and selling a
home – which we discuss later.

• Surveys – a survey will be
required by your lender but there
are other inspections you should
also consider.
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• Removals – you may be able to do
this yourself and save. 

• Renovating the new home –
obviously this expense is contingent
on your taste and the home you buy.
You may not make any alterations.

• Furniture – in many cases people
find they need new furniture when
they move to a new home.

Your savings target
By estimating the figures above you
should have an idea of how to establish
your savings target. The size of your
deposit will depend on the type of home
you want to buy and whether you decide
to save more than the 5% benchmark
we discussed.

If you are short of your target, don’t
despair. The thing to do is start a
dedicated plan to reach your goal. The
best way to do that is to speak with a
qualified financial adviser who can assist
you in developing the right strategy. You
will find some helpful contacts a little later
in this Guide and you may also like to read
The Guide ‘An introduction to investing’.

Starting the search
Buying a home usually involves a level of
compromise. Therefore it’s a good idea
to establish a list of your core needs.
Your list of wants may be longer, but it’s
harder to compromise on the essentials.

Your needs 
• How many bedrooms do you need?
• Do you work from home and need an

office?
• Do you need an area to get away

from the kids?
• Do the kids need an area to play

without disturbing you?
• Do you need a garage?
• Do you need to be near public

transport?
• Is level access important?
• Does the home need to be child

friendly? (If you have young children
you know that safety issues are
important.)

Lenders often advertise incentives to attract new mortgage customers.
Cash-backs and free property valuations are routinely on offer. 

Did you know?



Finding homes
Searching for homes has never been
easier. Time spent on the internet
can save you a lot of legwork
viewing homes that are simply not
suitable. You may like to try some of
the following sites:
• www.propertyfinder.com 
• www.home.co.uk
• www.rightmove.co.uk
• www.propertytoday.co.uk 
• www.fish4.co.uk 
• www.thishouseisforsale.co.uk
• www.HouseLadder.co.uk 

Price
There is no substitute for research in
being comfortable that the asking
price is fair and reasonable. You
should visit as many suitable houses
as you can. It also pays to know the
prices achieved for other homes in
the area. There are a number of
websites which may provide
assistance. The Land Registry –
www.landregisteronline.gov.uk – can
provide reports of prices achieved
for homes in England and Wales (for

a fee) while the Registers of
Scotland – www.ros.gov.uk – can do
the same for properties in Scotland.
There are some commercial sites
which provide free information. You
may like to try the following:
• www.landsearch.net 
• www.nethouseprices.com 
• www.mypropertyspy.co.uk
• www.myhouseprice.com
• www.nationwide.co.uk 
• www.ourproperty.co.uk 

Many estate agents will tell you the
three golden rules are: location,
location, location. The following are
some points to consider.

Location
For most people, choosing an area
hinges on budget and lifestyle. Also
consider the life stage of the area
itself. Some areas may be in decline
– others could be growing because
they are experiencing a boost in
popularity. 
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For most people, choosing an
area hinges on budget and
lifestyle.”

“



Is the location vibrant? 
Look for an area that’s growing – one
where your lifestyle is likely to improve.
Try to avoid areas where the council is
struggling for funds and public places
like parks and sporting fields have been
allowed to run down.

Is the area safe?
Every city has suburbs known for street
crime, violence and drugs. While the
home may be cheap, will you feel
comfortable waiting for the social
problems to be solved? The Office for
National Statistics runs a website,
www.neighbourhood.statistics.gov.uk,
where you can access information about
crime, health, population and housing
for the area you are considering. 

Schools
If you have children or are considering
starting a family, you will want to find
out all you can about the schools in the
areas you are considering. The Office for
Standards in Education provides
information on all local primary and
secondary schools and reports on

nurseries, special schools, 
independent schools and post-16
education providers in England at
www.ofsted.gov.uk In Scotland,
www.scottishschoolsonline.gov.uk can
provide similar information for schools. 

Street and home 
Once you’ve decided which area suits
your needs, get the local papers and
visit estate agents and property centres
for knowledge of local prices. There’s no
substitute for homework when deciding
the real value of the home you buy.

Many people buy because they fall in
love with a home – and that’s
understandable. However, for most
people, buying a home will be the
biggest investment of their life and it
pays to treat it as such. Ask yourself if
the home stands up from an investment
perspective.

Transport 
If you drive to work this may not be an
issue, but to a future buyer it could be.
It’s also one thing to be close to
transport, and quite another to have it



overwhelming you. Check for aircraft
noise. Drive past the home at night
and at rush hour to judge if major
roads or rail links affect it.

Shops
Some people like living in a village
atmosphere. Others like the big-city
bustle. At the very least, check
whether the basics are a convenient
walk or short drive away. 

View
If there’s a view, make sure it can’t
be obscured by a new building.

Aspect
Agents sometimes say the ideal
aspect is a home facing southwest
or having its living area windows
facing southwest. A garden facing
south should give you sun through
the winter.

Privacy
Do other houses look straight 
into your garden? Are the homes 
so close that you’ll be disturbed 
by noise? 

Access
Are there too many steps? Can you
park the car and easily carry the
shopping or the kids into the house? 

To buy or to build
This decision is usually ruled by 
your budget and your personal
preference. When comparing the
options, keep in mind all the costs
associated with building from
scratch. As well as the architect and
contractors, consider costs such as
fittings, carpets, curtains and
establishing a garden after the home
is built. If you’re buying an existing
home, follow our suggestions on
what to look for and recognise
property value before you make 
an offer.

Conversions
Conversions come in various 
forms, from disused shops and
warehouses to churches and barns.
Some people love the prospect of
converting a building to create a
truly unique home by retaining the
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original character. However, you should
check the building’s planning history. It
could be extremely costly to buy a
building only to find out that it can’t be
converted or indeed you can’t make the
changes you wish. 

Self build 
This approach may help ensure you get
the finished home you want. While this
Guide specifically deals with buying a
home, some of the contacts listed in 
the ‘Getting help’ section will still be
useful if you decide to self build. Finding
the plot in the area you want to live
could also be a challenge. Obviously you
can talk to real estate agents. There are
also websites which list plots and in
some cases search for plots, usually for
a fee. For further information you may
like to try: 
• www.selfbuildabc.co.uk 
• www.selfbuildland.co.uk 
• www.uklanddirectory.org.uk
• www.buildstore.co.uk
• lwww.plotfiunder.net 
• www.ukligroup.co.uk

Plot
If you are considering self build does the
plot have access to the services you
need? Is it level? If not, what will this
add to the cost of the project? 

Buying the home
If you think you have found your new
home it’s time to get serious about
evaluating its potential. We will look at
getting professional surveys in a
moment. But before you go to that
expense, make your second inspection a
detailed one. Remember the needs you
listed earlier and make sure enough of
these are met. 

Only you can decide if a house ‘feels like
home’. If it does, go back for a second
and third look and take your time to run
a critical eye over its strengths and
weaknesses. It is a good idea to write
down your thoughts on each property to
prompt your memory later.

The following checklist is by no means
exhaustive, but it’s a good start.

In certain circumstances, where you•re renting from the local authority or
housing association, you may have what is known as •the right to buy•. In

many cases this right will be at a significantly lower price than the home
may achieve on the open market. You should check to see if you qualify.

Did you know?
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If you do think you have found
the right one, it may be time to
get a professional survey.”

“

Does the property need renovating? If so what will it cost?

Can you extend the home in the future?

Are there any restrictions to prevent you from making alterations? 
For example, it may be a listed building. 

Has the property been altered? If so, were the alterations approved?

Is the house properly insulated? Don’t forget to check the loft if 
there is one. 

Are the walls free from cracks? These could be cracks in the 
paintwork or signs of more serious structural faults or subsidence.

Is the roof in good condition? Check guttering, downpipes and eaves 
for signs of water leakage. 

Is there a smell of damp or any other signs of water seepage?

Does the home have central heating? If so, how old is it?

Does the home have easy access? Stairs may not bother you, 
but they could affect your potential resale value.

Is there internal access from the garage and/or carport? 

Does the garden suit your needs and is it adequately fenced?

Are pavers in good condition? 

Is the block free from excess seepage or other noticeable drainage
problems?

Your home inspection checklist



Surveys
Your discoveries could indicate major
problems, or issues which require
simple repair work. If you do think you
have found the right one, it may be time
to get a professional survey.

Mortgage valuation survey
Your lender is certain to require this
report but it will provide only a basic

valuation and you may be wise to 
look further.

Home buyer’s survey
While this level of report does go into
greater detail, and still provides a
valuation, in most cases the surveyor
will not check major structural issues.

If the home has a view, are you sure it can’t be built out or obscured by 
trees in the future?

Is the home free from anything else that may affect your lifestyle? 
(Barking dog next door, noisy neighbours etc.)

Is there access to the property under the floor and adequate ventilation 
under the house?

Is the hot water service adequate?

Are there enough bedrooms? 

Are the rooms big enough? Will your furniture fit?

Are there enough power points?

Is the water pressure adequate?

Your home inspection checklist



Structural survey
This is the most expensive of all the
reports but should provide a detailed
survey on the condition of the
property.

Whatever you decide, make sure
you use a professional. You can
contact the Royal Institute of
Chartered Surveyors at www.rics.org
or on the helpline 0870 333 1600.
RICS can help you find a member
and also has a complaints 
procedure and arbitration scheme
for dispute resolution. 

The buying process
The process of buying a home can
be complex and it differs in Scotland
from the rest of the UK. In Scotland,
houses are sold as ‘Offers Over’,
‘Fixed Price’ or ‘Offers Around’. 

Offers over
The selling price is an indication of
the minimum price that the seller is
looking for. If more than one
purchaser is interested in a property,

the selling agents may fix a ‘closing
date’. This means that all interested
purchasers must submit a sealed
offer to the seller’s conveyancers by
the specified date. The offer will
include the amount, the inclusions
and the date of completion. 

On the closing date, the selling
agent or solicitor will open the
sealed offers and the property is
usually sold to the highest offer, as
long as the specified conditions are
agreed to by the seller. 

Fixed price 
‘Fixed Price’ advertises the exact
price the seller wants for the
property. The first person to offer
the price and also gain agreement
on the conditions such as
completion date will get the
property. 

Offers around 
‘Offers Around’ is used quite 
rarely but it signals that the seller is
willing to consider offers below the
listed price. 
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Outside Scotland 
In other parts of the UK, properties may
be sold at auction, although most are
sold by private treaty. With private treaty
sale, the seller of the property uses an
estate agent to put the property on the
market, and potential buyers go through
the agent to view the property and to
express any interest. 

A written offer to buy will always be
made ‘subject to contract’. This means
that you will not be committed to the
purchase before finding out more about
the state of the property. Verbal offers
are not legally binding. 

Auction
If you are buying a home at auction, you
should have your finance approved in
advance because if you are the
successful bidder, you’ll have to pay a
deposit of at least 10% at the fall of the
hammer. Some lenders will provide a
pre-written bank draft made out for 10%
of your maximum bid. You have a legally
binding agreement once the hammer
has fallen. You will also need to provide

details of your solicitor, and proof of
identification.

Guide price and reserve price
The guide price is a broad indication of
what the property can be expected to
sell for. The reserve price is the lowest
price the seller will accept. If there is a
reserve price, the agent or auctioneer
should make this clear, but the amount
will not be disclosed.

Conveyancing
This is the legal process of buying and
selling property and you have a number
of options open to you. We list some
useful contacts in ‘Getting help’. The
conveyancer handles the negotiations
over the various conditions in the
contract such as the date of entry. 

The mortgage
The Guide isn’t designed to discuss the
merits of various mortgage products.
You can access plenty of information at
the branch or online. However, there are
some things to consider when choosing
a mortgage that is right for you.

As a general rule, first time buyers will not be able to borrow more 
than 90-95% of a property•s value. Most lenders will require Mortgage

Indemnity Guarantee for mortgages greater than 90% of the value of 
the property.

Did you know?



Your goal should include being debt
free in the shortest possible time
while paying the smallest amount in
interest and charges.

So when you consider a mortgage,
look at all the added costs. For most
people the interest rate is the
biggest factor when choosing a
mortgage – but it shouldn’t be the
only one. Some low interest rate
loans lack the flexibility needed to
get out of debt quickly. Finding a
mortgage that will work for you is a
matter for your own self analysis. 

Also be honest about your
weaknesses. A current account
mortgage facility provides ready
access to a large sum of money. If
you’re not disciplined in your
spending, then a more traditional
mortgage with less ready access
may be better for you – and provide
a form of forced saving.

Choosing a mortgage 
The following are some points 
to consider.
• How often are you paid?
• Can your salary be paid directly

into the loan?
• Would you like the certainty of

fixed interest?
• Is your financial position likely to

change?
• Would a Standard Variable Rate

with cash back help you handle
the extra expenses of establishing
yourself in your new home?

• Are you planning to renovate,
sell the home and trade up
within a few years? (Loan
portability may be an issue.)

• Would you like to pay weekly,
fortnightly or monthly?

• Are you likely to need a different
type of loan in the future?
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Finding a mortgage that will work
for you is a matter for your own
self analysis.”

“



Preparing for your interview
Although there’s a lot of competition for
your business, to get the best outcome
there’s no substitute for preparation.
That means knowing all the options
available, and knowing what the lending
institution may need from you.

Prepare for your interview by having the
following details ready.
• The amount you hope to borrow.
• The value and type of home you plan

to buy or build – including a quote
from the builder if relevant.

• Your income details – your last two
years’ HM Revenue & Customs P60s,
or if you are self employed, three
years’ assessments; your last three
months’ pay slips; your last six
months’ bank statements.

• Your employment history – a stable
employment history enhances your
chances of getting your loan. You
may need a letter from your previous
employer if you’ve just changed jobs.

• If you already have a mortgage, your
last year’s mortgage statement, and
if you’ve been renting, your rent
book.

• Evidence of a deposit – details of
assets such as bank statements,
share certificates, etc. Your bank
statements may also demonstrate
your ability to save.

• Details of life insurance or
investment policies.

• Details of previous financial
agreements with lending institutions.

• Details of assets you own such as
jewellery and furniture.

• Contact details for your selling agent
or conveyancer. The institution will
want to arrange a valuation.

• Details of any outstanding debts,
including credit cards and personal
loans.

• Your driving licence. 



Getting help
You may find the following contacts
useful as you search for your new
home.

The National Association of Estate
Agents can help you find an agent
in your area at www.naea.co.uk

The Citizens Advice Bureau can
provide free information and advice
at www.adviceguide.org.uk The site
provides a host of information
including guides on the things to
consider when buying or selling a
home.

HM Revenue and Customs,
www.hmrc.gov.uk, can provide
information regarding stamp duty
land tax when buying a property.

The Trading Standards Institute
can provide information to help you
understand your rights at
www.tradingstandards.gov.uk  

The Financial Services Authority is
not only the body that regulates
investment firms; it is also a great
source of consumer information. The
website www.fsa.gov.uk contains
interactive tools and information to
help you compare various products,
find and choose an authorised
financial adviser and work with your
adviser to enjoy a comfortable
retirement. You can also call the
consumer helpline on 0845 606 1234.
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Conveyancing
• The Law Society of Scotland will

provide a list of solicitors in your area
at www.lawscot.org.uk or 
0131 226 7411.

• The Law Society is the professional
body for solicitors in England and
Wales and has a ‘find a solicitor’
service at www.lawsociety.org.uk or
0870 606 6675.

• The Council for Licensed
Conveyancers can help you find a
licensed conveyancer at
www.conveyancer.org.uk or
01245 349 599.

Affordable housing
There are various schemes designed to
help people buy their own home. For
more information and to see if you
qualify for assistance, you may like to try
one of the following websites:
• www.communitiesscotland.gov.uk 
• www.communities.gov.uk 
• www.housingcorp.gov.uk 

Note: From July 2007, all home owners in
England and Wales will need to prepare a
Home Information Pack before putting
their home up for sale. The website
www.homeinformationpack.gov.uk has
more details.

Note: Throughout The Guide we have listed various contact details for third parties
which may be of assistance. Clydesdale Bank makes no recommendation regarding
these organisations. You should also be aware that calls to companies and
Government departments are often monitored and recorded for security and service
quality reasons. You should also check what call charges may apply. 
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At Clydesdale Bank we pride ourselves in offering trusted
financial advice, for every stage of your life. By working
together, we can thoroughly define your needs and meet them
with tailored banking solutions.

We can help!

1 – Flexibility when you need it – At Clydesdale we offer a range of
flexible home loan solutions that can be customised to your personal
requirements.

2 – Award winning mortgage lender – Clydesdale Bank has been voted
‘Best Mortgage Lender Scotland’ 2005/2006 by Your Mortgage magazine,
an award which we have won for the past two years.

3 – Review your circumstances – Life is full of changes along the way;
together we can review your circumstances each year to ensure that your
goals are within reach.

4 – Don’t forget to insure – Your home is likely to be your biggest asset;
ensure you have adequate insurance to cover your property.

5 – More online – www.cbonline.co.uk is a great source of information.
We have online tools that can help you calculate repayments. We can
even provide insurance quotes online.

Ask at the branch where you received this Guide, and a member of staff will
happily put you in touch with one of our Banking Advisors. It’s an obligation
free service we offer to help you get your financial future on track today.
Alternatively, please call 0800 222 426.

Five things to consider



Clydesdale Bank has taken all care in the compilation and presentation of the facts and
information contained in this Guide. The information was current as at 1 October 2006. However
it is written as a general guide and is not intended to provide any financial, legal or other
professional advice. Nothing in this Guide should be treated as an authoritive statement on any
particular topic or of its applicability in any specific case. Action should not be taken on the
basis of this guide alone and specific professional advice should always be sought before any
action is taken.

Phone numbers quoted within this brochure may be monitored or recorded when you call.

Clydesdale Bank and the companies in the National Australia Bank Group accept no liability for
any errors or omissions.

All rights reserved. No part of this Guide can be reproduced without the prior permission of
Clydesdale Bank.

Clydesdale Bank PLC is authorised and regulated by the Financial Services Authority. Credit
facilities other than regulated mortgages are not regulated by the Financial Services Authority. 

Clydesdale Bank PLC.
Registered in Scotland (No. SC001111).
Registered Office. 30 St. Vincent place, Glasgow G1 2HL.
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